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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 21st Annual General Meeting of the members of
ELIN APPLIANCES PVT. LTD. will be held on Saturday, 30st September, 2023 at
11:00 A.M. at Corporate Office of the Company at 4771, Bharat Ram Road, 23, Darya
Ganj, New Delhi -110002 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts of the Company for the
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 together with the reports of the Board
of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

2. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Gaurav Sethia (DIN: 02902047), who
retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appointment Statutory Auditors to fill casual vacancy.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8) of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any,
(including any statutory modification(s), clarifications, exemptions
or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force) M/s. S.R.
Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
301003E/E300005), be and are hereby appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the
resignation of M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: 016520N).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005),
be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company
to hold the office with effect from 10th August, 2023 (from the
conclusion of Board Meeting) and to hold office till conclusion of
ensuing 215t Annual General Meeting to be held for FY ended
March 31, 2023, at such remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out
of pocket expenses, as may be determined and recommended and



approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in consultation
with the Auditors.”

4. To appointment Statutory Auditors and fixation of remuneration.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, (including any
statutory modification(s), clarifications, exemptions or re-enactments
thereof for the time being in force) M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 301003E/E300005), be
and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to
hold office for a period of four years, from the conclusion of the

ensuing 215t Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 25th
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2027, at
such remuneration plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses, as
may be determined, recommended and duly approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in consultation with the Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized
to take all such steps and do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
resolution.”.

On Behalf of the Board
For ELIN APPLIANCES PVT. LTD.

=y

Place: New Delhi (VINAY KUMAR SETHIA)
Date: 10th August, 2023 Director
DIN: 00082184

3\ \%7/

NOTES:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and such proxy need not be a
member of the company. Proxies in order to be effective must be deposited
at the registered office of the company not less than forty-eight hours before
the time fixed for the meeting.

2. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and
holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may



® N

10.

11.

12.

13.

appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for

any other person or shareholder.

Corporate Members are requested to send a board resolution duly certified,

authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the

Annual General Meeting.

Members are requested to give consent for holding AGM at Delhi in place of

registered office at Himachal Pradesh, pursuant to proviso to section 96(2) of

the Companies Act 2013.

An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act,

2013 in respect of special businesses is annexed hereto and form part of this

notice.

The relevant records and documents connected with the businesses set out in

the Notice are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the

Company and at AGM venue between 11.00 AM and 1.00 PM on all working

days up to the day of the Annual General Meeting.

Members, are requested to bring their Folio No for identification.

Members desiring to seek any information on the Annual Accounts are
requested to write to the Company so that the query reaches to the Company
at least one week in advance of the Annual General Meeting.

The ‘Register of Directors' and Key Managerial Personnel and their
shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act'),
the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are
interested under Section 189 of the Act will also be available for inspection at
the meeting.

A member can inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business
hours of the Company from the period beginning 24 hours before the time
fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of
the meeting, provided he/she has given to the Company a notice in writing of
his intention to inspect not less than 3 (three) days before the commencement
of the meeting.

Members are requested to bring their attendance slip at venue of the meeting.
Quote their Folio No. and Email address in all correspondence with the
Company.

Note that members present in person or through registered proxy shall only

be entertained. Note that the attendance slip/ proxy form should be signed as
per the specimen signature registered with the Company.

No gifts, gift coupons, or cash in lieu of gifts shall be distributed at the
Meeting.



Consent for holding AGM at place other than Registered Office
Pursuant to proviso to section 96(2) of the Companies Act 2013

To,

Elin Appliances Pvt Ltd
Village Beli Khol

Tehsill Nalagarh, Dist: Solan
Himachal Pradesh -174101

Dear Sirs,
Re: LF: 06

I, Mangilall Sethia, Director/representing Elin Electronics Ltd, having registered Office
at 143 Cotton Street, Kolkata West Bengal, India-700007, holding 199999 (One lakh
Ninety Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Nine) equity shares of Rs.10/- each in the
Company in Company’s name, hereby give consent, for holding AGM at Delhi instead of
the Registered Office at Beli Khol (HP), pursuant to proviso to section 96(2) of the
Companies Act 2013.

For Elin Electronics Ltd.

M(/)——v,t_‘__’___@ =
 Mangilall Sethia
Director
DIN: 00081367

Dated: 10.08.2023



Consent for holding AGM at place other than Registered Office
Pursuant to proviso to section 96(2) of the Companies Act 2013

To,

Elin Appliances Pvt Ltd
Village Beli Khol

Tehsill Nalagarh, Dist: Solan
Himachal Pradesh -174101

Dear Sirs,

Re: LF: 09
I, Kamal Sethia, nominee, Elin Electronics Ltd, having registered Office at 143 Cotton
Street, Kolkata West Bengal, India-700007, holding 1 (One) equity share of Rs.10/- each
in the Company in my name as nominee, hereby give consent, for holding AGM at Delhi
instead of the Registered Office at Beli Khol (HP), pursuant to proviso to section 96(2) of
the Companies Act 2013.

Cooen 0 00 7

(Kamal Sethia)
Nominee of Elin Electronics Ltd

Dated: 10.08.2023



Annexure

Name of Director GAURAYV SETHIA
Category of Directorship WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR
DIN 02902047

Date of Birth 19-03-1985

Age 37 Years

Date of Appointment on the 13/07/2020

Board

Qualification & Experience

Bachelor’s degree in engineering from Visveswaraiah
Technological University, Belgaum, Karnataka. He
has approximately 11 years of experience in business
development and communication.

No. of other Directorships

Mavika Estate Creators Private Limited

Chairman / Member of the NIL
Committees of the Board of Other
Companies

No. of Equity Shares held in the NIL
Company

Number of Board Meetings 5/5

attended during the year

Terms and conditions of
appointment / re-appointment

Director liable to retire by rotation

Remuneration sought to be paid
and the remuneration Last drawn

Rs. 8,00,000/- per month with perquisites, with
effect from 01st April 2022 and the remuneration
Last drawn is 8.47 Millions.

Relationship with Other Directors,
Manager and Key Managerial
Personnel

Not related to any Director, Manager or Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Justification for choosing the
Independent Director

Not Applicable




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: Beli Khol Manpurateh Nalagarh Distt Solan, Himachal Pradesh

CIN: U29300HP2002PTC025355

Email id: rkc@elinindia.com, Phone no: 011 2327 6406, Website- www.elinindia.com

BOARD’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS

Yours Directors present the 21st Annual Report together with the audited accounts of

the Company for the year ended 31st March 2023.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Figures in INR
Millions*)
2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from operations 2504.29 2,561.50
Profit before Depreciation, Finance Costs and Tax 106.05 119.51
Less: Financial Costs 2.53 5.36
Less: Depreciation 21.6 15.98
Profit before taxation 81.92 98.17
Taxation - Current Tax -19.02 -24.36
- Deferred Tax -4.69 (0.33)
- MAT Credit entitlement
0 -
for the year
-Tax related to Earlier Year 0 -
Profit after Tax 58.21 73.47
Profit brought forward 655.89 582.42
Transfer to Reserve 0 -
Profit carried to balance sheet 714.10 655.89
EPS (Basic and diluted)
(amount in INR) 291.03 367.37

*Figures as per (Ind AS)

DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend dividend to conserve resources for future

expansion.

PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the year under review, the revenue from operations decreased by 0.022% to
Rs. 2504.29 Millions as against Rs. 2,561.50 Millions in the previous year. The net
profit after tax decreased by 20.77% to Rs. 58.21 Millions as against Rs. 73.47
Millions in the previous year.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in the nature of business during the financial year 2022-23.

MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND
THE DATE OF THE REPORT




No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurred between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Board has assessed the risk that the organization faces such as Strategic, Financial,
Credit, Market, Liquidity, and Security, IT, Legal and other risks and there is an
adequate Risk Management infrastructure in place to address those risks.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no material
weakness in the design or operation was observed.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

All related party contracts/arrangements/ transactions that were entered into
during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the
ordinary course of business.

The disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section
134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is attached as an

Annexure-I.

HOLDING COMPANY

“Elin Electronics Ltd.” is the holding company, holding 100% of the share capital of
the company. The company being a subsidiary of “Elin Electronics Ltd.”, the public
company, is a ‘deemed public company’ pursuant to provisions of section 2(71) of
the Companies Act 2013.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Associate and Joint venture as defined
under the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS
Details of loans, guarantees or investments given and covered under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are given in notes to the financial statements.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the year.

DIRECTORS

Members may note that pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act 2013
applicable to Public Companies Shri Gaurav Sethia (DIN: 02902047), Director of the
Company will retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, offer himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-
appointment for approval of shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The brief profile, pursuant to Secretarial Standards-2, of the Director eligible for
appointment/ re-appointment forms part of the Notice of Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received declaration from the Independent Director that he meet
the criteria of Independence laid down under the Act. The Independent Directors



has also confirmed that he has registered himself in the databank of persons offering
to become Independent Directors. All Independent Director of the Company has
been appointed as per the provisions of the Act.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The directors hereby confirm:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed and there have been no material departures
from the same;

b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit of the company for that period;

c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;
and

e) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Pursuant to Section 135(9) of Companies Act, 2013, [inserted by the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 vide Notification dated 28th
September, 2020], made effective from 22nd January 2021, where the
amount to be spent by a company for CSR in a financial year does not
exceed fifty lakh rupees, the requirement for constitution of the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee shall not be applicable and the functions
of such Committee provided under section 135 shall, in such cases, be
discharged by the Board of Directors of such company. The amount
which was required to be spent by the company on CSR in a financial
year 2022-23 as per section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, was less
than fifty lakh rupees. Hence, in view of said amendment, the company is
not required to have CSR Committee and the Board of directors would
oversee the CSR activities of the company.

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) For Financial
Year 2022-23 is attached as an Annexure-II.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
During the year Five meetings of the Board were held on 30% May, 2022, 8t
August, 2022, 31t October, 2022, 12t November, 2022, and 10th February, 2023.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS
OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts/
Tribunals during the financial year 2022-23 which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE




The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, as applicable. The
Company has not received any complaint under the same.

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT

In accordance with the provisions of the section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rules made thereunder, M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered
Accountants (Firm Registration number 016520N), were re-appointed as
statutory auditors of the Company for a term of five consecutive years from
financial year 2019-20 onwards, by the shareholders at the 17t Annual General
Meeting (AGM) held on 27th September, 2019.

M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration

Number: 016520N), vide its resignation letter dated 9th August, 2023 have
resigned from the position of Statutory Auditors, effect from closing of business

hours of the Board meeting held on 10th August, 2023, post submission of
Limited Review Report for the Quarter ended on June 30, 2023.

The Board at its meeting held on 10th August, 2023, placed on record their
appreciation to M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered Accountants for their
contribution to the Company with their audit processes and standards of
auditing during their tenure as Statutory Auditors of the Company.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 10th August, 2023 pursuant to the
provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provision(s), if any, of the
Companies Act 2013 and subject to the approval of shareholders at ensuing
Annual General Meeting have approved the appointment of M/s. S.R. Batliboi
& Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 301003E /E300005) as
Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill-in causal vacancy arisen due to
resignation of M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company, Chartered Accountants (Firm

Registration Number: 016520N), with effect from 10th August, 2023 (from the
conclusion of Board Meeting) and to hold office till conclusion of ensuing 215t

Annual General Meeting to be held for FY ended 315t March, 2023 at such
remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be
determined and recommended in consultation with the Auditors and duly
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Further, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 10th August, 2023
pursuant to Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 and other applicable provisions if any and upon the recommendation of
the Audit Committee and subject to the approval of shareholders at ensuing
Annual General Meeting have approved the appointment of M/s. S.R. Batliboi
& Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 301003E/ E300005),
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for the first term of
consecutive four years, from the conclusion of the 215t AGM, till the conclusion
of the 25th AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2027 at such
remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be
determined and recommended in consultation with the Auditors and duly
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.



The Company has received consent letter and eligibility certificate from M/s.
S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.
301003E/E300005), along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made,
would be within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The

Auditor’s Reports on the Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31t
March, 2023 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark
requiring any explanations/ comments by the Board of Directors. No fraud has
been reported by the Statutory Auditors under Section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to compliance of Regulation 24A of the SEBI LODR
Regulations, Company’s unlisted material subsidiary also undergo
Secretarial Audit. The Company is the material subsidiary of ELIN
ELECTRONICS LTD for the FY 2022-2023. Accordingly, the Secretarial
Audit Reports of the Company in the prescribed Form No. MR-3 is
attached as Annexure - III forming part of this Report. The Secretarial
Audit Report of your Company does not contain any qualification,
reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

No fraud has been reported by the Secretarial Auditors under Section
143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

ANNUAL RETURN
In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, the annual return in the prescribed
format is available at www elinindia.com.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors affirms that the Company has complied with the
applicable Secretarial Standards (‘SS’) issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (SS1 and SS2), relating to Meetings of the Board and General
Meetings respectively, which have mandatory application during the year under
review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND
FOREIGN EARNINGS & OUTGO

The information relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption,
foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required pursuant to Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014 is given as under:

A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:-

The Company manufactures electric irons, toasters, juicer mixer, grinders and
other electronics items. The company has acquired new machinery of latest
technology resulting in considerable saving in power consumption. The capital
investment on energy conservation equipments during the year is NIL.

B TECHNICAL ABSORPTION:-

Self-reliance in new product development, import substitution and cost
reduction attempts are made for sourcing of material and components for
cost effectiveness.

Imported Technology (imported during the last 3 years) - NIL
Expenditure incurred on Research & Development - NIL



C) FOREIGN EARNINGS & OUTGOS:-
(Rs. in Lacs)

2022-23 2021-22
Total Foreign Exchange Outgo (actual outflow) 3,351.00 2,503.88
Total Foreign Exchange earned (actual inflow) Nil 160.44

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors thank the Company’s customers, vendors, bankers and
investors for their continuous support. The Directors also thank the
Government of India, Governments of various states in India, Governments
of various countries and concerned Government departments and agencies
for their co-operation.

The Directors regret the loss of lives due to COVID-19 pandemic and are
deeply grateful and have immense respect for every person who risked his
life and safety to fight this pandemic.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep appreciation for the
services rendered by staff and workers of the company at all levels and for
dedication to their work and loyalty.

For and on behalf of the Board
For Elin Appliances Pvt. Ltd.

Viney Vo SR

Date: 30.05.2023

Place: New Delhi
Vinay Kumar Sethia
Whole-time Director & Chairman
DIN: 00082184



ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED

ANNEXUREI

Registered Office: Beli Khol Manpurateh Nalagarh Distt Solan, Himachal Pradesh
CIN: U29300HP2002PTC025355
Email id: rke@elinindia.com, Phone no: 011 2327 6406, Website- www.elinindia.com

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: - NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arran

ement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

& components

- Purchase of Fixed
Assets

-Payment for Job
work services

-Receiving of
Dividend

-Sale of

Components
/Plastic Dana &
Spare Parts

-Job work

sales/receipts

- Rent receipt

Name of | Nature of Duration of | Salient terms | Approval Amou

Related  party | contract/ Contract/ of contract/ | by the | nt

and Nature of | transactions transactions | transactions Board/ paid

Relationship shareholder | as
advan
ce, if
any

Elin Electronics | -Purchase of | On-going Regular 30t May, | Nil

Ltd. Motors, Plastic | transactions | commercial 2022

(Holding Molded / contract transactions/

company- ; rent contract

hol ding}i 00% items/sheet

shares) metalParts/ DTM

Place: New Delhi
Date: 10.08.2023

For and on behalf of the Board
For Elin Appliances Pvt. Ltd.

évwwv MM
Gaurav Sethia
Whole-time Director

DIN: 02902047

%ma T Y|

Vinay Kumar Sethia
Whole-time Director

DIN: 00082184




ANNEXURE II

ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: Beli Khol Manpurateh Nalagarh Distt Solan, Himachal Pradesh
CIN: U29300HP2002PTC025355

Email id: rkc@elinindia.com, Phone no: 011 2327 6406, Website- www.elinindia.com

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
(CSR) FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
The CSR policy focuses on addressing critical, social, environmental, and economic needs of
the under privileged section of the Society of India. Company will also undertake other need-
based initiatives in compliance with Schedule VII of the Act.
2. Composition of CSR Committee: Not applicable for FY 2022-23
3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: - www.elinindia.com
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attach the report).: Not Applicable
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required
for set off for the financial year, if any
SI. No. Financial Amount available for set- | Amount required to be set- off
Year off  from  preceding | for the financial year, if any (in
financial years (in Rs) Rs)
Nil
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 8.29 Crores
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):
Rs. 16.57 lakhs
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Nil
(¢) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): Rs. 16.57 lakhs
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
gotal fAmm:l?t Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
poil st Unspent CSR Account as per | ynder Schedule VII as per second proviso to
Financial Year. section 135(6). .
in Rs section 135(5).
(inRs.) Name of
Amount. | Date of the Amount. | Date of
transfer. Fund transfer
24.92 lacs Nil Nil




(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

@ 2 16 @ ©) (6) (7 _1©) ©) (10) (11)
lb\;‘ Name of | Item Location of | Projec | Amo | Amou | Amou | Mod | Mode of
& the Project | from | Loc | the project. | t unt nt nt e of | Implementation -
' the |al durati | alloca | spent | transf | Impl Through
list |are on ted in erred | eme Implement
of a for the | the to nta | ing Agency
activ | (Ye projec | curren | Unspe | tion
ities |s/ t (in t nt
in No Rs.). financ | CSR | -
Sche |) ial Accou
dule Year | nt for
VII (in the
to Rs.). | projec | Dir
the t as
Act. per ect
Sectio
n (Ye
135(6)
(in s/
Rs.).
No
)-
CSR
State|Distric Name | Registrati
t. on
number.
--===-=-NIL —-—--

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

@ (2) ©) §4 ©) © () ()
SL | Name of the | Item from |Local| Location of the | Amoun [Mode | Mode of
ho. Project the listof [area | project. tspent [of implementation -
activities  ((Yes/ for the [implem | Through
in INO). project [entatio implementi
schedule (inRs.). n ng agency.
VII to the
Act. - CSR
State. | District] Direct | Name. registrati
(Yes/No on
) number




1 [Development

of forest by
planation

sanctuary at
Handa

around Cattle

Khundli, Baddi

nsuring  [Yes [Himach [Nalagar|5.14 lacs [Yes
lenvironmen al h, Distt.
tal Pradesh [Solan
sustainabilit
y, ecological
balance,
protection off
flora and
fauna,
animal
welfare,
agroforestry,
conservation
of natural
resources
and
maintaining
quality of
soil, air and
'water

NA INA

2 [Satveer
[Hanuman
Akhara

On Yes [Himach [Nalagar[19.53 Yes
[promoting al h, Distt. [Lacs
National & Pradesh [Solan

Rural Sports

NA NA

3 [Distribution of

Flags

00.25
Lacs

[Himach |Distt. Yes

Solan

On Yes
[promoting al
education Pradesh
relating to
culture

INA NA

TOTAL

24.92 lacs

(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(¢)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs.

24.92 lacs

(8)  Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl
No.

Particu
lar

Amount (in Rs.)

)

Two percent of average net profit of the company
as per
section 135(5)

16.57 lakhs

(ii)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

24.92 lacs

(iif)

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

8.35 lacs

(iv)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any

(v)

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial
frears

(iii)-(iv)]

8.35 lacs

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:




SL | Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any fund | Amount
No.| Financial transferred | spentin specified under Schedule VII as per | remaining
Year. t th | section 135(6), if any. to be spent
oUnspent | e Na in
CSR reporting me | Amount (in | Date of succeeding
Account Financial of Rs). transfer. financial
under Year (in the years. (in
section 135 | Rs.). Fun Rs.)
(6) (in Rs.) d
NIL
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s):
O @ 06 @ 06 ®) @) ® o
SL. | Projec | Name | Financial | Project | Total Amount Cumulative | Status of
No| 4 1p, of the | Year  in| duration| amount | spent on the | amount the project
' Project.| which the | . allocate | project in spent at the -
project d for the end of Combleted
was th | reportin reportin omplete
commence e Firlzanciailg Fiﬁancia% /Ongoing,
d. project | Year (inRs). | Year. (in
(in Rs.). Rs.)

-——--—-Not Applicable--—--

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year

(asset-wise details). - Not Applicable
@ Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

® Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital

asset.
© Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital

asset is registered, their address etc.
@ Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and

location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5). Not Applicable

W\"* INGA E_O:SL,L, . s
§ [ Ao Jlbaa
VINAY KUMAR SETHIA GAURAYV SETHIA
(Whole-Time Director) (Whole-Time Director)
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FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014 ]

To,

The Members,

Elin Appliances Private Limited

CIN: U29300HP2002PTC025355

Regd. Off.: Beli Khol Manpurateh Nalagarh
Distt Solan Himachal Pradesh

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Elin Appliances Private Limited
(hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances
and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on March 31%, 2023 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023
according to the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA") and the rules made
thereunder; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’):-




(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period);

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(9) (The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

(J) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period);

(vi) Other laws as may be applicable to the company,
I have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following:

Secretarial Standards with regard to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General
Meetings (SS- 2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were following
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors of the company during the year 2022-
23:

(a) Mr. Vinay Kumar Sethia, Director of the Company Appointed as Whole Time Director of
the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 1° April 2022 to 31* March 2025,
who is liable to retire by rotation.

(b) The members of the Company has inter-alia passed the Special Resolution at their
AGM held on 30™ August, 2022 for the shifting of Registered Office of the Company
from the State of Himachal Pradesh to National Capital Territory (NCT) of Delhi.
Accordingly, the Company has filed petition to Regional Director, Northern Region
(Delhi) for shifting its Registered Office from the State of Himachal Pradesh to National
Capital Territory (NCT) of Delhi. The Company has not received approval for same till
date.




(c) The changes in the composition of board of directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and based on the information given by the company, I
report there were no instances of any dissenting members’ views being captured or
recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Akshat Garg & Associates
(Company Secretaries)

AKSHA ssmysmey

Date: 30.05.2023 b
Place: Ghaziabad (CS Akshat Garg)
Prop.
C. P. No. 10655
M. No. F9161

UDIN: FO09161E000429757
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E-mail :oswalsunil.co@gmail.com
Website : www.oswalsunil.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Elin Appliances Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Elin Appliances Private Limited

(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary

. of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Standalone

financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended), of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
. Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report
but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other
information comprising the above documents is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless board of directors either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the
“Annexure-A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

1

applicable.
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Standalone Statement of Cash flows and the Standalone Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B".

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with
Schedule V of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone Financial Statements - Refer Note 35(a) to the Standalone Financial Statements.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts. The Company did not have any
derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

FRN : 016520N /3
New Delhi
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. Since the Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, the question of
commenting on whether dividend declared or paid is in accordance with Section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to
the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,
2023.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants

Partner

M. No.:

CA Nishant Bhansali

532900

UDIN: 23532900BGVCKG6365

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 30, 2023
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‘ANNEXURE A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Elin Appliances Private Limited on the
Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, we report that:

i. (a)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situations of its Property Plant and Equipment.

B. The Company does not have any Intangible Assets and hence comment on maintenance of its
proper records does not arise.

(b) Property, Plant and equipment of the company are physically verified according to a phased program
of coverage which, in our opinion, is reasonable. Pursuant to the program, physical verification of the
Property, Plant and equipment was carried out during the year by the management and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements
included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Hence reporting
under clause 3 (i) (d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated during
the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended 2016) and rules made thereunder. Hence
reporting under clause 3 (i) (e) is not applicable.

(a) The Inventories, except for stocks lying with certain third parties from whom confirmations have been
obtained for stocks held as at the year end, have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. In our opinion, the discrepancies noticed on physical verification were less
than 10% in aggregate for each class of inventory and the same have been properly dealt with in the books
of accounts.

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate,
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. As represented by the management in note 19(b) of
the standalone financial statements and per the information and explanation given to us and records
examined by us, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with banks are generally in
agreement with the books of accounts.

(a) During the year, the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly.
the requirement to. EN clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

o
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(b) During the year, the Company has not made investment, provided guarantees, provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(c) The company has not given loans and advances in the nature of loans and hence, no comments are
applicable in respect of schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest and if the repayments
were due.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not given loans and advances in the nature of loans and hence,
no comments are applicable in respect of amount overdue for the more than ninety days.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling due during the
year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans
given to same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, to promoters, related parties
as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not made any investments, given any loans, guarantees, or security which
attracts compliance of section 185 and section 186 of Companies Act. Accordingly, Clause 3(iv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules framed there under apply, or an order has been passed by Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same,

In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the Company
is generally regular in depositing, with the appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, sales tax, service tax,
custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues wherever applicable.
According to information and explanation given to us, and as per the records examined by us, no
undispute}grqg@rsn&é: tory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2023 from the date they became payable.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as certified by the management, details
of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above, which have not been deposited on account of
disputes as on March 31, 2023 and the forum where the dispute is pending are given below:

Name of Nature | Gross Demand | Paid under Appeal Period to which Forum where
the statute | of dues (in Millions) (in Millions) the amount relates | dispute is pending
4.37 0.57 AY 2014-15 Commissioner of
9.99 1.60 AY 2016-17 Income Tax
Income Tax | Income 7.22 1.57 AY 2017-18 (Appeal)
Act, 1961 Tax 11.94 2.40 AY 2018-19
Central Processing
0.25 A i Centre (CPC)
Total 33.77 6.14

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination, the Company has
not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender as
at the Balance Sheet date.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us including representation received from the management, the Company has not been declared as
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.

(c) The term loans have been applied for the purpose for which these are raised.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis
have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) In our opinion, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and
accordingly the requirements under paragraph 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) are not applicable to the company.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination, no money was
raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year by
the Company.

(b) Based on our examinations of the records and information and explanations given to us, the company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures during
the year.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us
including representation received from the management, no fraud by the company or on the company has
been noticed or reported dlgm@ the year.
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(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

during the year and upto the date of this report.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the
management and based on our examination, there were no whistle-blower complaints received during the

year by the Company;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a Nidhi
company. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, in our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during
the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xv) is not applicable.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not conducted any
Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities requiring it to have a Certificate of Registration
(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group has no CIC

as part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. hence reporting under clause
3(xviii) is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our

knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence

supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
/ YO N
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material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing
projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a) is not applicable for the year.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a
special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associates or joint ventures and hence reporting under clause
3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants

. 016520N
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M. No.: 532900
UDIN: 23532900BGVCKG6365

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 30, 2023
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‘ANNEXURE B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Elin Appliances Private
Limited (‘the Company’) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the

Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAI and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants

Partner
M. No.: 532900
UDIN: 23532900BGVCKG6365

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 30, 2023



ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note As at

No(s)  March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Assets
Non-current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Investment in subsidiary, others
(d) Financial Assets
(1) Investments
(ii) Other Financial Assets
(e) Other non-current assets
Total Non Current Assets

Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
(1) Investments
(i1) Trade receivables
(i1i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Other Financial Assets
(c¢) Current Tax Assets (net)
(d) Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity
Total Equity
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
Total Non Current Liabilities

Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings
(11) Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues to other than micro and small enterprises
(111) Other tinancial liabilities
(b) Current Tax liabilities (Net)
(¢) Other current liabilities
(d) Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

3 333.08 272.97
4 0.91 0.06
5 17.34 17.34
6 0.74 0.58
7 0.69 0.59
9 31.96 32.54
384.71 324.08

10 211.60 153.79
1 4.59 442
12 580.15 600.71
13 0.13 0.74
14 1.78 143
2 - 021
15 38.64 46.73
836.89 808.03

1,221.60 1,132.12

16 2.00 2.00
16 746.81 689.13
748.81 691.13

17 2 8.81
18 1.41 1.33
8 19.10 14.64
20.50 24.77

19 131.83 161.50
20 95.77 73.29
20 200.13 150.58
21 13.89 14.06
22 2.38 4.34
23 3.70 10.49
24 4.58 1.96
452.29 416.21

472.79 440.99

1,221.60 1,132.12

As per our report of even date attached
For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered A ~3o

Partner
M.No.: 532900

New Delhi, May 30. 2023

For and on behalf of the Board
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Vinay Kumar Sethia
Director
DIN: 00082184

New Delhi, May 30, 2023



ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

. Note For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars No(s) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I INCOME
Revenue from operations 25 2,504.29 2,561.50
Other Income 26 6.72 8.47
Total Income (I) 2,511.02 2,569.97
II EXPENSE
Cost of Material Consumed 27 2,118.31 2,140.22
Purchases of stock-in trade 1.38 3.73
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in progress and stock-in trade 28 (50.56) 19.33
Employee benefits expense 29 232.98 212.00
Finance Costs 30 253 5.36
Depreciation, Impairment & amortization expenses 3,4 21.60 15.98
Other Expenses 31 102.85 75.19
Total Expenses (II) 2,429.10 2,471.80
111 Profit before tax (I - II) 81.92 98.17
IV Tax expenses
- Current tax 19.02 24.36
- Deferred Tax 4.69 0.33
23.71 24.69
YV Profit for the year (IT1I-IV) 58.21 73.47
VI Other comprehensive Income (OCI):
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (0.91) 0.98
(ii) Income tax on above item 0.23 (0.25)
(iii) Gain/(Loss) on Equity Instruments designated through OCI 0.16 -
Total Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (0.52) 0.73
VII Total comprehensive income for the year (V + VI) 57.68 74.21
VII1 Earnings per share from continuing and total operations attributable to the 32
equity holders of the Company [face value of INR 10/- each]
- Basic and diluted (amount in INR) 291.03 367.37

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Oswal Sunil & Company

Chartered Accountants
Firm RegNoy; 01 6520N

Nishant Bhansali \\\
Partner
M.No.: 532900
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New Delhi, May 30, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

%r\"ﬂ .

Vinay Kumar Sethia
Director
DIN: 00082184

New Delhi, May 30, 2023



ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Al amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Part
R March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
I.  Cash flow from Operating Activities :
Net Profit before taxes 81.92 98.17
Adjustments for :
Depreciation, Impairment and Amortization expenses 21.60 15,98
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.30 (0.54)
Fair value (gain)/loss on investments (0.93) (4.03)
Impairment loss, Bad Debts, advances and miscellaneous balances written off (0.82) 0.27)
Dividend and interest income classified as investing cash flows (1.80) (0.06)
Finance costs (net) 2.53 5.36
20.88 16.44
Change in operating assets and liabilities :
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade and other receivables 21.38 (232.67)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (57.81) 55.68
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables 72.04 (26.34)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets (0.44) 0.73
(Increase)/ Decrease in other non-current assets 0.58 (16.60)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current assets 8.10 (14.87)
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions 1.78 1.32
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current liabilities (6.96) (0.49)
38.67 (233.25)
Cash generated from operations 141.47 (118.64)
Income taxes paid/refund (net) (20.77) (30.28)
Net cash inflow from /(used in) operating activities 120.70 (148.93)
I Cash flow from Investing activities
(Payments) for property, plant and equipment including CWIP (83.16) (39.08)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.30 1.40
Proceeds/(Payments) from sale of Investment (net) 0.75 118.04
Dividends received 1.77 0.03
Interest received 0.03 0.03
Net Cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (80.30) 80.43
1T Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings 0.00 63.00
(Repayment) of borrowings (38.48) (15.66)
(38.48) 47.34
Less: Finance Costs paid (2.53) (5.36)
Net Cash flow from/ (used in) financing activities (41.01) 41.98
IV Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (I + 11 + III) (0.61) (26.53)
V  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 0.74 27.27
VI Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 0.13 0.74

Notes:

1 The Standalone Statement of Cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set-out in the Ind AS - 7 "Statement of Cash Flow" as specified

in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
2 Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.
3 Cash and cash equivalents (refer Note 13) comprise of the followings:
Cash on hand
Cheques in hand
Balance with banks in current accounts
Balances per statement of cash flows

4 Analysis of movement in borrowings
Borrowings at the beginning of the year

Movement due to cash transactions as per the Statement of Cash Flows

Borrowings at the end of the year

The accompanying Notes form an integral part of the Standalone Financial Statements.

0.06 0.01
0.01 z
0.06 0.73
0.13 0.74
170.31 122,97
(38.48) 47.34
131.83 170.31

As per our report of even date attached
For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants '
Firm Reg. o )

FRN

016520N

M.No.: 532900

New Delhi, May 30, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board

P W Hy

Vinay Kumar Sethia
Director
DIN: 00082184
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Elin Appliances Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1

Corporate information

Elin Appliances Private Limited (“the company™) was incorporated in India on August 21, 2002 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (CIN U29300HP2002PTC025355). The Company is engaged in the business of Electrical &
Electronic Products and Components. The registered office of the company is located at Belikhol, Nalagarh, District Solan,
Himachal Pradesh.

The Standalone Financial Statements is approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors in their meeting held on
May 30, 2023.

Recent accounting pronouncements:-

The MCA has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 on March 31, 2023,
whereby the amendments to various Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) has been made applicable with effect from
April 1, 2023 onwards. Amended requirements as per these rules in relation to various Standards are as follows:

e Ind AS I — Presentation of Financial Statements: The amendments require companies to disclose their material
accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The Company has evaluated the requirements of
the amendment and its impact on Financial Statements is not likely to be material.

* Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: The definition of a change in accounting
estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. The amendments will help entities to distinguish
between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The Company has evaluated the requirements of the
amendment and there is no impact on its Financial Statements.

e Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes: The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The
Company has evaluated the requirements of the amendment and there is no impact on its Financial Statements.

Amendments to other Indian Accounting Standards viz. Ind AS 101- First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards,
Ind AS 102 — Share Based Payments, Ind AS 103- Business Combinations, Ind AS 107- Financial Instruments -
Disclosures, Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, and Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting are either consequential to
above amendments or clerical in nature. The Company has evaluated the requirements of the amendments and there is no
impact on its Financial Statements.

Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements are as
given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the Standalone Financial
Statements.

Basis of Preparation

2.1.1 Statement of compliance
The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian A ccounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Company has consistently applied accounting policies to all
periods.




Elin Appliances Private Limited
Significant Accounting Policies
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

2.1.2 Historical Cost Convention
The Standalone financial statements of the company are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind

AS), under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”), except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets (except trade receivables and contract assets which | Fair value

are measured at transaction cost) and liabilities (including derivative)
Defined benefits liability Present value of defined benefits obligations

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Standalone financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee
(INR), which is also the company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest million, up to two
places of decimal, unless otherwise indicated. Amounts having absolute value of less than INR 1,00,000 have been rounded and
are presented as INR 0.00 Millions in the Standalone Financial Statements.

2.2 Current vs non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the standalone statement of assets and liabilities based on current/ non-current

classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
*  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
*  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
*  Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months
after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

A liability is current when:
+ Itisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle
* Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
*  Itisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
*  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve monthsafter the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.3 Property plant and equipment

Recognition and Initial Measurement

Property, plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of each item can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment are initially stated
at their cost.

Cost of asset includes:
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(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset to its working

condition for the intended use
c) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site on which it is

located if recognition criteria are met.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and the cost
of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital advances and

capital work-in-progress (CWIP) respectively.

Significant Parts of an item of PPE (including major inspections) having different useful lives & material value or other
factors are accounted for as separate components. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent _measurement

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company and cost of the expenditure can be measured reliably.

Depreciation and useful lives
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets

as specified in schedule 11 of the Companies act, 2013.

Particulars Useful life as per Particulars Useful life as per
Schedule I1 Schedule I1
Computers 3 Years Dies, tools and Moulds 15 Years
Servers 6 Years Factory Building 30 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years Building (other than factory building) 60 Years
Furniture and fixtures 10 Years Electric Installation and Equipments 10 Years
Plant & Machinery 15 Years Motor Cycles 10 Years
Motor Vehicles & Lorry 8 Years

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the period is charged on pro-rata basis
from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment is
depreciated separately if the cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different
from the useful life of remaining asset. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Derecognition
An item of property. plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no

future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the standalone statement
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

2.4 Intangible assets

Intangible assets (Other than goodwill) acquired separately are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if
any. Intangible assets are amortized on straight line basis over the estimated useful life. Estimated useful life of the software is
considered as 3 years. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed in each financial year / period end and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively. An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognised in the Standalone statement of
Profit and Loss.
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2.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash- generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or Companys of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the
impairment loss, including impairment on inventories are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using apre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risksspecific to the asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.
The reversalis limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceedthe carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period.
Such reversal is recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

2.6 Inventories

a) Inventories (which comprise traded goods) are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

*  Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

*  Finished goods and intermediate products (including manufactured components): Cost includes cost of direct materials and
labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on first in,
first out basis.

»  Stores and spares, consumables and packing materials cost includes direct expenses and is determined on the basis of first
in first out method.

b) Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimatedcosts of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-
item basis.

2.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties and is adjusted for variable considerations. Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to
the performance obligations in the contract on the same basis as at contract inception. The Company recognizes revenue for variable
consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The
Company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using most likely amount method.
Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in
the period in which the transaction price changes. Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are
approved either to the contract scope or contract price.

a) Sale of products and Services
Revenue from sale of products is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods istransferred to the
customer at the time of shipment to or receipt of goods by the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
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b)

©)

d)

€)

The Company has concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements as it typically controls the goods or
services before transferring them to the customer.

Sales-related warranties associated with sale of goods cannot be purchased separately and they serve as an assurance
that the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the Company accounts for warranties in
accordance with Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

The goods and service tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on
behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Other Operating Revenue
Export incentive is recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the
conditions and the incentive will be received.

Other Revenue

* Interest income: Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method (“EIR”) that is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

*  Dividends: Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

*  Rentalincome: Rental income arising from operating leases or on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms & included in other non-operating income in Statement of Profit and Loss.

*  Insurance Claims: Insurance claims are accounted for as and when admitted by the concerned authority.

Contract balances

*  Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset isrecognized for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

* Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

*  Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods orservices to the customer, a contract liability is
recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognized as revenue when theCompany performs under the contract.

Right of return

The Company provides a customer with a right to return in case of any defects or on grounds of quality. The Company uses
the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not be returned because thismethod best predicts the amount
of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. Therequirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are also applied inorder to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be
included in the transaction price.

The Company has also applied the practical expedient under Ind AS 115 for incremental cost of obtaining a
contract and has recognized such cost as an expense when incurred if the amortizationperiod of the asset is one year
or less.
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2.8 Taxes

a) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid tothe taxation authorities
in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
period and is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current tax is recognized in standalone statement of profit
and loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized outside profit or loss in which case it is recognized outside profit
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in relation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes current tax payable
where appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offsetand intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases ofassets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in standalone statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items recognized
outside profit or loss, in which case is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset currenttax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

2.9 Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional currency using the closing rate
(Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for assets). Non- monetary items denominated in a foreign currency
which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss in the period in
which they arise. These exchange differencesare presented in the standalone statement of profit and loss on net basis.

2.10 Employee benefit
a) Short-term employee benefits
Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and other benefits falling due wholly within twelve
months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits
are expensed in the standalone statement of profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related
services.
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b) Post-employment benefits

* Defined Contribution Plan: A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.

The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards provident fund (‘PF’) and employee state insurance scheme
("ESI’) which is a defined contribution plan. The Company's contribution is recognized as an expense in the standalone
statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plan: A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Under
such plans, the obligation for any benefits remains with the Company. The Company's liability towards gratuity is in
the nature of defined benefit plan.

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The
plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of
employment of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. The Company makes periodic contributions to the Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance
Company Ltd. and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co. Ltd for the Gratuity Plan in respect of employees.

The liability in respect of gratuity is accrued in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The Company's net obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate based
on the market yield on government securities of a maturity period equivalent to the weighted average maturity profile of the
defined benefit obligations at each reporting date.

Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is recognized in other comprehensive income and is reflected in
retained earnings and the same is not eligible to be reclassified to standalone statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost, interest cost and gains or losses on settlements
are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss as employee benefits expense. Gains or losses on settlement
of any defined benefit plan are recognized when the settlement occurs. Past service cost is recognized as expense at the
earlier of the plan amendment or curtailment and when the Company recognizes related restructuring costs or termination
benefits.

¢) Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences constitute other long-term employee benefits, recognized as an
expense in the standalone statement of profit and loss for the period in which the employee has rendered services. The
obligation recognized in respect of these long-term benefits is measured at present value of the obligation based on actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit credit method.

Long term employee benefit costs comprising current service cost, interest cost and gains or losses on curtailments and
settlements, re-measurements including actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and
loss as employee benefit expenses.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which aresubject to an insignificant risk of
change in value.
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For the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash and short-

term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

2.12 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
such assets upto the assets are substantially ready for their intended use.

The loan origination costs directly attributable to the acquisition of borrowings (e.g. loan processing fee, upfront fee) are
amortised on the basis of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method over the term of the loan. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.13 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

a)

b)

d)

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle thepresent obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-taxrate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Warranties
Provisions for the expected liability of warranty obligations under sale of goods are recognised at the management’s
best estimate if the claims of the customers under warranty are probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may but probably will not,
require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably.
When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

These are reviewed at each financial reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits isprobable.

2.14 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Trade receivables issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

a) Financial assets

Initial recognition_and measurement

A financial asset (except trade receivable and contract asset) is recognised initially at fair value plus or minus s transaction
cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’) are recognised immediately in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss.
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Classification and subsequent measurement

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost;

- FVOCI — equity investment; or

- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that aresolely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading classified
asat FVTPL. Forall other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value in other comprehensive income (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the other comprehensive income (‘OCI’). There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to the Standalone statement of Profit andLoss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
Standalone statement of Profit and Loss.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interestincome, are recognised
in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified
to profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Expected credit loss (ECL) is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e.,all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original
EIR.
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b)

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit riskexposure:

(a) Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost e.g., deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

(b) Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOCI

(¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that resultfrom transactions that are
within the scope of Ind AS 115

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
standalone statement of profit and loss. ECL for financial assets measured as at amortized cost and contractual revenue
receivables is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the Standalone
statement of Assets and Liabilities. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria,
the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which
are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its standalone statement of assets
and liabilities but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

Subseguent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
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d)

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The Company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

(ii) Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Interest expense is recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
standalone statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone statement of assets and
liabilities if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.15 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderlytransaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either:

.

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability, the principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
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*  Level I: quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

*  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

*  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Standalone Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each reporting date, the Company analyses
the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to beremeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's

accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

2.16 GST Credit
The GST credit available on purchase of raw materials, other eligible inputs and capital goods is adjusted against taxes payable.
The unadjusted GST credit is shown under the head “Other Current Assets”.

2.17 Earnings per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for events ofbonus issue and share split. For the purpose of calculating diluted
carnings/ (loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential
equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average
market value of the outstanding equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, unless issued at a laterdate. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.
The number of equity shares and potential dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share
splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the standalone financial statements by
the Board of Directors.

2.18 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The board of directors of the Company has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker by the
Management of the Company.

The business of the Company falls within a single line of business i.e. electronics manufacturing services. All other
activities of the Company revolve around its main business. Hence, no separate reportable primary segment.

2.19 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all stipulated conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate and presented within other operating income. Grants related to assets are reduced from the carrying amount
of the asset. Such grants are recognized in the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss over the useful life of the related
depreciable asset by way of reduced depreciation charge.
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2.20 Standalone statement of cash flows
The standalone statements of cash flows is made using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferral accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and item of income or expense
associated with investing or financing of cash flows. The cash flows from operating, financing and investing activities of the

Company are segregated.

2.21 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The estimates used in the preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements of each period/year presented are continuously
evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experienceand various other assumptions and factors (including
expectations of future events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. The said estimates
are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional
evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results
could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such estimates were reasonable when made,
if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes
in estimates are recognized in the Standalone Financial Statements in the period in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Significant judgements

* Allowances for uncollected trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivable balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables
are written off when management deems not becollectible.

* Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. There
are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on all available facts and circumstances are not probable
of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes
Although there can be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the Company is involved. it is not expected
that such contingencies will have material effect on its financial position of probability.

* Impairment of other financial assets
The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the
Company's past history, existing market conditions as wellas forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

*  Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing
of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made,
or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded.
The Company establishes current tax payable, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such current tax payable is based
on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable
entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending
on the conditions prevailing in the domicile of the Company.
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Recoverability of deferred taxes

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the
generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxableprofit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgementis required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

* Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair valueless costs of disposal calculation is based on available
data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a Discounted Cash Flow (‘DCF’) model.

Significant estimates

Defined benefit plans

The costs of post-retirement benefit obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each
reporting period. At the end of the current reporting period, the management determined that the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets at which they are currently being depreciated represent the correct estimate of the lives
and need no change.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the standalone statement of assets and liabilities
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree ofjudgement
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Warranties

At each balance sheet date, basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the company assesses the
requirement of provisions against the outstanding warranties. However, the actual future outcome may be different from
management’s estimates. Product warranty liability and warranty expenses are recorded if the claims of the customers under
warranty are probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

2.22 Exceptional Items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities,
which are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary
to explain the performance of the Company.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

4 Capital work-in-progress

. Plant &

Particulars - Total
Machinery
Balance as at April 1, 2021 - -
Additions 0.06 0.06
Disposals / Adjustments “ -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 0.06 0.06
Additions 0.91 0.91
Disposals / Adjustments (0.06) (0.06)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 0.91 0.91
4.1 Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2years 2 -3 years Moy Total
J years

Balance as at March 31, 2022 0.06 - - - 0.06
Balance as at March 31, 2023 091 - - - 0.91

4.2 As on the date of the financial statement, there are no capital work-in-progress projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded the cost,

based on approved plan.

Investment in subsidiaries, others

Particulars

As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Unquoted Investments (At Cost)
Investment in Equity Instruments
Holding Company

17.34 17.34

Total

17.34 17.34

A. Investment in Holding Company

Particulars

Face value per Elin Electronics Ltd.

share (Rs.) No. of Shares Amount
Investment in Equity Instruments - Equity Shares
As at March 31, 2022 5/- 17,34,000 17.34
As at March 31, 2023 5/- 17,34,000 17.34
B. Additional Disclosures:
Particulars an Bt
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 17.34 17.34
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -
C. Additional details of Holding Company
Place of

Name of Entity

incorporation and
principal business

Principal Activity

Elin Electronics Limited

Manufacturing of Electric Components, Motors & India

Components Parts

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

6 Non-Current Financial Assets - Investments

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Unquoted
Investments - Non-Trade
Investments in Equity instruments 0.74 0.58
Total 0.74 0.58

6.1 Detail of Non-Current Investments

Shivalik Waste Management Pvt

Factenlars Ltd (Face Value Rs. 10/-each) _ Total Amount
No. of Shares Amount
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
(i) Investment in equity instruments - Equity Shares
As at March 31, 2022 20,000 0.58 0.58
As at March 31, 2023 20,000 0.74 0.74

6.2. Additional Disclosures:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 0.74 0.58
Other Financial Assets - Non Current
As at As at
Particula
ArSae March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity * 0.12 -
Accrued Interest on FDR 0.00 -
Security Deposit 0.56 0.59
Total 0.69 0.59

* Above bank deposits are held as margin money/securities with banks.

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net)

Deferred income tax reflect the net tax effects of temporary difference between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes

and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant component of the Company’s net deferred income tax are as follows:-

Defined benefit

Property, plant

Provisions &

Lartedlicy obligation and equipment others Total
As at 01 April, 2021 0.74 (15.34) 0.53 (14.07)
(Changed)/Credited:
- to Statement of profit and loss 033 (3.30) 2.64 (0.33)
- to other comprehensive income (0.25) - - (0.25)
- to current tax liability - - - -
As at 31 March, 2022 0.83 (18.64) 3.17 (14.64)
(Changed)/Credited:
- to Statement of profit and loss (0.18) (4.10) (0.41) (4.69)
- to other comprehensive income 023 - - 0.23
As at March 31, 2023 0.88 (22.74) 2.76 (19.10)
Other Non-Current Assets
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good
Capital Advances 31.96 32.54
Total 31.96 32.54
Inventories (at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
4 As at As at
Farticalars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Inventories (As Certified and valued by the management)
Raw Materials 129.75 127.50
Raw Materials in transit 6.67 1.67
136.42 129.17
Work-in-progress 23.44 13.59
Finished goods 51.75 11.03
Total 211.60 153.79

FRN : 016520n
New Delhi




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

11 Current Financial Assets - Investments

; As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Unquoted Investments

(i) Investments in Mutual Funds 4.59 442
Total 4.59 4.42
11.1 Detail of Current Financial Assets - Investments

. As at As at
Particalars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets carried at fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in mutual funds - Unquoted Investment
HDFC Group Unit Linked Plan Option B 4.59 442
(Units - 63437.28, (PY 63437.28))
Total Current Investments at FVTPL 4.59 4.42
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 4.59 442
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -
12 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables
Particulars At a8 ot
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good 580.73 601.31
Less: expected credit loss allowance (0.58) (0.60)
Total 580.15 600.71
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables are as follows:
Balance at the Beginning of the year 0.60 0.37
Add: Provided during the year (0.02) 0.23
Less: Amount written off - -
Balance at the end of the year 0.58 0.60
12.1 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule, on due basis:
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good
Not Due 575.56 595.81
Less than 6 months 5.16 5.50
6 months - 1 year 0.01 -
1 -2 years = -
2 -3 years ~ -
More than 3 years g .
Total 580.73 601.31

12.2 There are no disuputed trade receivables as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

12.3 In determining the allowance for trade receivables the Company has used practical expedients based on financial
condition of the customers, ageing of the customer receivables & over-dues. availability of collaterals and historical experience
of collections from customers. The concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables is reasonably low as most of the

customers are large Corporate organisations though there may be normal delays in collections.




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

13

14

15

Current Financial Assets - Cash & cash equivalents
Particulars Asat As st
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with banks in current account 0.06 0.73
Cheques, drafts on hand; 0.01 -
Cash on hand; 0.06 0.01
Total 0.13 0.74
* Above Bank deposits are held as margin money/securities with banks.
Current Financial Assets - Other Financial Assets
Particulars A8 Al
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Loans & Advances to Staff & Workers 1.78 1.43
Total 1.78 1.43
Other Current Assets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Indirect tax recoverable 1.54 0.44
Income Tax Under Appeal 6.14 6.14
Gratuity fund balance (refer note 33) 19.84 23.70
Advance to Suppliers 10.12 12.89
Export Incentive receivables 0.02 0.63
Prepaid Expenses 0.97 2.94
Total 38.64 46.73

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

16 A. Share Capital

(i) Authorised Share Capital

p Equity Share Capital
Earticalany No of Shares Amount
As at April 01, 2021 2,00,000 2.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 2,00,000 2.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 2,00,000 2.00

(ii) Shares issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

Particular

Equity Share Capital

No of Shares Amount

As at April 01, 2021

Add: Shares issued during the year

Add: Bonus shares issued during the year
Less: Share bought back during the year
As at March 31, 2022

Add: Shares issued during the year

Add: Bonus shares issued during the year
Less: Share bought back during the year
As at March 31, 2023

2,00,000 2.00

2,00,000 2.00

2,00,000 2.00

(iii) Terms/right attached to Equity Shares

The Company has one class of shares having a face value of Rs. 10/- per equity share. All equity shares rank equally with regard to
dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to
time. Shareholders are entitled to one vote per equity share held in the Company. On winding up of the Company, the holders of
equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts

in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

(iv) Shareholders holding more than 5 percent of Equity Shares

Name of Shareholder

Elin Electronics Limited - Holding Company
(including shares held by nominees)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2,00,000 2,00,000
100.00% 100.00%

(v) Shareholding of Promoters

Promoter Name

Shares held at March 31' 2023 % Change during

Nos. of Shares % of Total Shares  the year ended
Mar 31' 2023

Elin Electronics Limited

2,00,000 100.00% -




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

B. Other Equity

As at As at

Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
(i) Retained Earnings 714.10 655.89
(ii) Other Reserves *

a. Securities Premium 13.50 13.50

b. General Reserve 4.50 4.50
(iii) Components of Other Comprehensive Income

a. Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments 0.54 0.38

b. Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 14.17 14.86

Total 746.81 689.13

* Brief description of Other Reserves:

a. Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the

provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

b. General reserve is the free reserve created out of the retained earnings of the Company. The reserve is utilised in accordance

with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013.

(i) Retained Earnings

Particulars Amount

As at April 01, 2021 582.42

Add: Net profit for the year 73.47

Less: Transfer to reserve during the year -

As at March 31, 2022 655.89

Add: Net profit for the year 58.21

Less: Transfer to reserve during the year -

As at March 31, 2023 714.10

(ii) Other Reserves

Pasiividam Secu r?ties General
Premium Reserve

As at April 01, 2021 13.50 4.50

Increase during the year - -

Decrease during the year - -

As at March 31, 2022 13.50 4.50

Increase during the year - -

Decrease during the year - -

As at March 31, 2023 13.50 4.50

(iii) Components of Other Comprehensive Income

Changes in fair

Remeasurement of

Particulars value of FYOCI defined benefit
equity instruments plans

As at April 01, 2021 0.38 14.13
Increase during the year - 0.73
Decrease during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 0.38 14.86
Increase during the year 0.16 (0.68)
Decrease during the year - -
As at March 31, 2023 0.54 14.17

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

17

18

19

20

Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

) As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Secured Borrowings
Term Loans - from Banks* “ 15.47
Less : Current maturities of long term debt - Term Loans - (6.67)

Total - 8.81

* net off of Rs.Nil (2022: Rs. 0.05 Millions) as finance charge

Notes:

a) Loan has been prepaid during the current year. Loan was secured by First pari paasu charge by way of mortgage of all Inmovable Properties
of Company situated at Belikhol, Tehsil Nalagarh, District Solan, Himachal Pradesh and hypothecation of Plant & Machinery, Equipments,
Tools, Spares, Accessories and all other Assets, both present and in future. The Loan was further secured by Personal Guarantee of the two

directors of the company.

b) Term Loans - Repayment schedule and rate of interest

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Secured
Weighted Ave. Rate of Interest - 6.83%
Outstanding amount - 15.47
Repayment Due

FY 2022-23 - 6.67

FY 2023-24 - 6.67

FY 2024-25 - 2.13

Remaining payable upto 2028-29 a <
Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions

. As at As at
Fartientars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Provisions for Employee Benefits (refer note 33)

Provision for Leave Encashment 1.41 1.33
Total 1.41 1.33
Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
Pacticel As at As at
P L March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Borrowings - Loans repayable on demands
Secured
(i) from banks - Working Capital 131.83 154.83
(i1) Current maturities of Long term borrowings (refer note 17) - 6.67
Total 131.83 161.50
Notes:

a. Secured by First pari paasu charge by way of mortgage of all Immovable Properties of Company situated at Belikhol, Tehsil Nalagarh,
District Solan, Himachal Pradesh and hypothecation of Plant & Machinery, Equipments, Tools, Spares, Accessories and all other Assets, both
present and in future. The Loan is further secured by Personal Guarantee of the two directors of the company.

b. Quarterly returns/statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are generally in agreement with the books of accounts.

Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables

Particulars ATES AR
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Trade Payables
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises (refer note 34) 95.77 73.29
Others 200.13 150.58

Total 223.86




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

20.1 Trade Payables Ageing Schedule, on due basis:

. As at As at
Partiosinn March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
MSME (Undisputed)

Not Due 90.87 73.29
Less than | year 4.90 -
| -2 years “ -
2 -3 years - -
More than 3 years e .
Total 95.77 73.29
Other than MSME (Undisputed)
Not Due 170.09 138.41
Less than | year 29.73 12.17
1 -2 years 0.32 -
2 -3 years - -
More than 3 years - -
Total 200.13 150.58
20.2 There are no disputed balances of MSME or other than MSME as on March 31, 2023 and March 31' 2022.
. 21 Other Financial Liabilities - Current
Paiticil As at As at
HLTCH March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Expenses Payables * 13.89 14.06
Total 13.89 14.06
*includes primarily Salaries & Bonus Payable and other expenses payable
22 Current Tax Assets / Liabilities
8 As at As at
Particul
i March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Current Tax Assets
Advance Income Tax / TDS (net of provisions) - 0.21
Current Tax Liabilities
Income Tax Provisions (net of Advance Income Tax / TDS) 238 4.34
23 Other Current Liabilities
Particul As at As at
articulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Statutory Liabilities payvable 3.70 10.49
Total 3.70 10.49
24 Current Liabilities - Provisions
o As at As at
RESmary March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Provisions for Employee Benefits (refer note 33)
Provision for Leave Encashment 2.08 1.96
Provision- Others 2.50 -
Total 4.58 1.96

FRN : 016520N / «
New Delhi i3 3




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

25

26

27

28

Revenue from operations
£ For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Products and Services
- Sale of Products 2,498.44 2,554.86
- Sale of Services 240 1.76
Other Operating Revenues
- Scrap sale 345 3.54
- Export Incentives - 1.33
Total 2,504.29 2,561.50
25.1 Contract Balances
Receivables, which are included in ‘trade receivables’ 580.15 600.71
25.2 Revenue from sale of products/services disaggregated by primary geographical market
India 2,504.29 2,550.75
Qutside India 0.00 10.75
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,504.29 2,561.50
Other Income
N For the year ended  For the year ended
Pariculars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Other non-operating income
Interest on Bank Deposits 0.03 0.03
Dividend Received 1.77 0.03
Fair value gain/(loss) on investments measured at FVTPL 0.17 3.88
Gain/(loss) on sale of current investments measured at FVTPL 0.75 0.15
Rent Received 399 3.84
Profit on sales of Property, Plant and Equipment - 0.54
Exchange Fluctuation Gain (Net) 0.00 -
Total 6.72 8.47
Cost of Material Consumed
Particul For the year ended  For the year ended
WEDR LAY March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 127.50 164.55
Add : Purchases during the year 2,120.56 2.103.16
2,248.06 2,267.72
Less: Closing Stock 129.75 127.50
Total material consumed 2,118.31 2,140.22
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in progress and stock-in trade
e For the year ended  For the year ended
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 51.75 11.03
Work in process 2344 13.59
75.18 24.63
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 11.03 31.23
Work in process 13.59 12.72
24.63 43.95
Total _ (50.56) 19.33

29 Employee Benefits Expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particul

Mrticutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salaries, bonus and allowances 211.34 190.95
Contribution to Provident and other funds 1431 14.13
Staff welfare expenses 7.32 6.91

Total

212.00




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(All amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

30 Finance Costs

] For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost :

- on borrowings 1.07 4.84
- other Interest cost 1.04 0.32
Other borrowing cost 0.42 0.20
Total 2.53 5.36

31 Other Expenses

X For the year ended  For the year ended
Prrsicalars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Manufacturing Expenses

Power and Fuel & Water Charges 15.09 11.65
Carriage Inwards Expenses 295 3.16
Processing Charges 23.23 16.08
Consumable Stores - 7.59 4.54
Testing & Calibration Expenses 0.56 0.81
Repairs and Maintenance 21.97 13.40
(A) 71.40 49.63
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Advertisement & Sales promotion expenses 0.92 0.43
Carriage & Octroi (Outward) 0.35 1.10
(B) 127 1.53
Establishment Expenses
Rent 0.50 1.24
Rates and Taxes 1.26 0.07
Auditors' Remuneration
- Audit Fees 0.48 0.38
- In Other Capacity 0.13 0.10
Legal and Professional Charges 1.53 1.09
Communication Expenses 0.70 0.64
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 8.37 7.14
Vehicle Running & Maintenance 2.18 1.88
Insurance Expenses 2.58 179
Provision for Doubtful Receivables (0.82) (0.27)
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (refer note 39) 2.49 1.88
Exchange Fluctuation Loss (Net) - 0.08
Net Loss / (Gain) on Sale of Property Plant and Equipment 0.30 -
Miscellaneous Expenditure 10.47 8.00
(C) 30.18 24.03
Total (A to C) 102.85 75.19
32 Earning per Share (EPS)
Variioatics For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Basic & Diluted Earnings per share :
Profit / (Loss) for the year 58.21 73.47
Profit / (Loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders (A) 58.21 73.47
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (B) 2,00,000 2,00,000
Nominal value of ordinary share Rs. 10/- Rs. 10/-
Earnings per share - Basic & Diluted (A/B) - Rs. 291.03 367.37




ELIN APPLIANCES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements
(Al amounts are in INR Millions, unless otherwise stated)

33 The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Standalone Financial Statements as per Ind AS - 19 "Employees Benefits" as specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015:

a) Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised are charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year as under :

For the year ended For the year ended

- w2 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund and other 14.31 14.13

b) Defined Benefit Plan

The employees' gratuity fund scheme is managed by Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Company Ltd. and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Co. Ltd which is a defined benefit plan. The present
value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation and the obligation for leave hment is recognised in the same manner as gratuity.

Actuarial assumptions

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Leave E b

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022  March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Discount rate (per annum) 7.40% 7.30% 7.40% 7.30%
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Average remaining working lives of employees (Years) 24.10 24.10 - -
Table showing changes in present value of obligations :
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 19.70 16.21 329 2.95
Interest Cost 2.52 1.18 0.24 0.20
Current Service Cost 4.33 2.26 316 2.90
Benefits paid (0.77) (0.89) (0.66) (0.37)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (1.07) 0.95 (2.54) (2.40)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 24.72 19.70 3.49 3.29
Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets :
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 43.40 40.90 442 4.25
Actual return of plan assets 5.54 297 0.32 0.29
Employer contribution 0.90 0.90 0.66 037
Benefits paid (0.77) (0.89) (0.66) (0.37)
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on obligations (4.53) 0.47) (0.15) (0.13)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of year 44,56 43.40 4.59 4.42
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year - Obligation (1.07) 0.95 (2.54) (2.40)
Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year - Plan assets 4.53 0.47 (0.15) (0.13)
Total (gain) /loss for the year 3.46 1.42 (2.69) (2.52)
The amounts to be recognized in Standalone Balance Sheet :
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 24.72 19.70 3.49 3.29
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 44.56 4340 4.59 442
Net asset/ (liability) recognised in Standalone Balance
Sheet (19.84) (23.70) (1.10) (1.13)
Expenses recognised in Standalone Statement of profit and loss :
Current service cost 4.33 2.26 3,16 2.90
Interest Cost (3.03) (1.79) (0.08) (0.09)
Expenses recognised in the Standalone Statement of
profit and loss 1.31 0.47 3.08 2.81

Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligation:
Impact of the change in Discount Rate

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 24.72 19.70 349 329

Impact due to increase of 1% 2.14) (1.78) (0.15) (0.15)
Impact due to decrease of 1% 2:53 2,12 0.18 0.22

Impact of the change in salary increase

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 24.72 19.70 349 329

Impact due to increase of 1% 244 1.99 0.17 0.20

Impact due to decrease of 1% (2.11) (1.74) (0.15) (0.20)

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are insignificant & hence ignored,

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Year | 324 247 2.08 1.96
Year 2 1.61 1.00 0.09 0.08
Year 3 1.47 1.23 0.09 0.09
Year 4 1.98 1.23 0.13 0.09
Year 5 1.68 1.59 0.12 0.13
Year 6 to 10 8.78 6.76 0.51 0.50
1 tment Details

Funds managed by Insurance Companies 4433 43.11 4.59 442
Cash / Bank Balance 0.23 0.29 - -

Note: The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and
demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the Actuarial Valuer.
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Disclosure as required under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develop Act, 2006 (the Act):

. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Principal amount remaining unpaid to micro & small enterprises* 95.77 73.29
Interest due on above - -
Interest paid during the period beyond the appointed day -
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment without adding the

interest specified under the Act. u =
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the period - -
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to small enterprises for the purpose of

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Sec.23 of the Act o |

Note: The above information and that given in Note 20' Trade Payables’ regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined on the basis of information available with the
Company and has been relied upon by the auditors. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.
* Includes Rs. 90.87 Millions (P.Y. Rs. 73.29 Millions) outstanding, but not overdue to micro and small enterprises as on March 31, 2023,

Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respect of :

g As at As at
Eucticnlars March 31,2023  March 31,2022
(1) Unexpired Letters of Credit 021 -
(ii) Guarantees given by banks on behalf of the Company 1.23 -
(ii1) Claims against the Company towards income tax in dispute not acknowledged as debt 33.77 31.18

Notes:

i) The Company's pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company and proceedings pending with Tax Authorities / Statutory Authorities. The Company has reviewed all its
pending litigations and proceedings and has made adequate provisions, wherever required and disclosed the contingent liabilities, wherever applicable, in its financial statements. The
Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a material impact on its financial position.

ii) The Company periodically reviews all its long term contracts to assess for any material foreseeable losses. Based on such review wherever applicable, the Company has made
adequate provisions for these long term contracts in the books of account as required under any applicable law/accounting standard.

iif) The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The
Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come in to effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been
issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes effective.

iv) The Company does not have outstanding term derivative contracts as at the end of respective years,

v) There have been no amounts which are required to be transferred to the investor education and protection fund by the company.

(b) Capital Commitments

Q.

37

As at As at

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 8.61 19.71
(net of advances)

In the opinion of the Board, all assets other than Property Plant and Equipment and non-current investments, have a realisable value in the ordinary course of business which is not
significantly differ from the amount at which it is stated.

"Related Party Disclosures" as required by Ind AS-24 :

(i). Name and description of related parties.

Relationship : Name of Related Party

(a) Holding Company: Elin Electronics Limited

(b) Key management personnel : Sh. Gaurav Sethia (Director)
Smt. Priyanka Sethia (Director) (w.e.f. 30th Oct'2020) (Ceased w.e.f 9th Oct’2021)
Sh. Pradeep Sethia (Director) (w.e.f. 05th Dec'2020) (Ceased w.e.f 9th Oct'2021)
Sh. Vinay Kumar Sethia (Director) (w.e.f. 29th Sep'2021)

(c) Relatives of Key management personnel : Smt. Khushboo Sethia

(d) Post Employment Benefit Plans Elin Appliances Pvt. Ltd. Employees Gratuity Trust

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the auditors
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(i1). Nature of transactions - The transactions entered into with the related parties during the year along with related balances as at respective years are as under:

For the year ended For the year ended

e March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Purchases/receiving of Goods & services

Elin Electronics Limited 417.26 537.78
Sales/rendering of Goods and services

Elin Electronics Limited 1.11 223
Income - Rent /Dividend /Other income

Elin Electronics Limited 5.57 3.84
Closing Balances of Payables

Elin Electronics Limited . 48.44 44.10
Contribution towards Gratuity Liabilities

Elin Employees Group Gratuity Trust 0.90 0.90
R ation of Key Manag, t Personnel *

Sh, Gauray Sethia 847 4.38

Sh. Vinay Sethia 847 -

Sh. Pradeep Sethia - 1.53

Smt. Priyanka Sethia - 3.56
Remuneration of Relatives of Key Management Personnel

Smt. Khushboo Sethia - 1.85

* As the future liability for gratuity and leave encashment is provided on an actuarial basis for the company as a whole, the amount pertaining to the directors is not ascertainable and
therefore, not included above.

Segment Reporting
a. The Board of directors of Elin Appliances Private Limited takes decision in respect of allocation of resources and assesses the performance basis the reports/ information provided by
functional heads and is thus considered to be Chief Operating Decision Maker. During the years under consideration, the Company operated only one seg ie., facturing of

Electrical & Electronic Products and Components.

b. Geographical Information

The geographical information analyses the Company’s revenues by the Company’s country of domicile (i.e. India) and other countries. In presenting the geographical information,
segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of customers. The following is the distribution of the Company’s consolidated revenues and receivables by geographical
market, regardless of where the goods were produced:

For the year ended For the year ended

RIS March 31,2023  March 31,2022
i. Revenue from customers

India 2,504.29 2,550.75
Quitside India 0.00 10.75
Total revenue 2,504.29 2,561.50
ii. Trade receivables

India 580.15 600.71
Qutside India s =
Total trade receivable 580.15 600.71

iii. The Company has common non-current assets for business in domestic and overseas markets. Hence, separate figures for non-current assets/ additions to property, plant and
equipment have not been fumnished.

¢. Information about major customers (from external customers)
Revenue of approximately 88% (PY : 88%) are derived from 2 Nos. (PY : 2 Nos.) external customers which individually accounted for more than 10%.

39 Corporate social responsibility expenses:

-a o B

For the year ended For the year ended

Particula

o March 31,2023 March 31,2022
amount required to be spent by the Company during the year, 1.67 1.63
amount of expenditure incurred, 249 1.88

shortfall at the end of the year, ® -
total of previous years shortfall, R .
reason for shortfall, = =
nature of CSR activities,

On promoting health care including preventive health care and sanitation - 1.46
On promoting education relating to culture 0.03 -
On promoting National & Rural Sports 1.95 -
Ensuring envir [ sustainability, ecological bal protection of flora and fawna, animal welfare,
agraforesiry, conservation of natural resources and mainiaiming quality of soil, air 0.51 0.37
Disaster . including relief, rehabilition and reconstruction activities - 0.05
details of related party transactions, e., contribution to a trust controlled by the Company in relation
to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard, Nil Nil
where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual
obligation, the movements in the provision during the period should be shown separately Nil Nil

ERN : 016520N /= |
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40 Fi ial Instr ts and risk I{
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and lease liabilities. The main purpose of these ﬁmmmja]
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables that derive directly from its
operations

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The management has the overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities.

40.1 Financial Instruments by category

" As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
FavSoniars FVIPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost FVIPL FVTOCI Amortized Cost
Financial Assets
(i) Investments- Equity Instruments(level 2) - 0.74 - - 0.58 -
(ii) Investments- Mutual Funds (level 1) 4.59 - - 442 - -
(111) Trade receivables - - 580.15 - - 600.71
(1v) Cash and cash equivalents - - 0.13 - - 0.74
(v) Bank balances other than (iii) above - - - - - -
(vi) Other Financial Assets - - 247 - - 203
Total financial assets 4.59 0.74 582.75 4.42 0.58 603.48
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings - - 131.83 - - 170.31
(i1) Trade payables - - 295.90 - - 223.86
(iii) Other financial liabilities - - 13.89 - - 14.06
Total Financial liabilities - - 44[_}62 - - 408.23

Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and are categorized into Level 1, Level 2
and Level 3 inputs. There are no transfers between level 1, level 2 and level 3 during the years presented.

Significant estimates:
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mamly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.

40.2 Management of Financial Risk

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it
will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the year closing date.

Notes Nos. Carrying amount Less than 12 More than 12 Total
months months

As at March 31, 2023

Borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) 17, 19 131.83 131.83 - 131.83
Trade payables 20 295.90 295.90 - 295.90
Other liabilities 21 13.89 13.89 - 13.89
As at March 31, 2022

Borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) 17,19 170.31 161,50 881 17031
Trade payables 20 223.86 223.86 - 223.86
Other liabilities 21 14.06 14.06 - 14.06
Market Risk

Market risk is the nisk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency nisk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI & FVTPL
investments.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flow of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The Company does not expose to the
risk of changes in market interest rates as Company's long and short term debt obligations are of fixed interest rate.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to its operating activities (when certain purch and trade payables are denominated in a foreign currency).

The Company undertakes transactions d inated in foreign currencies and consequently, exposes to exchange rate fluctuations. The Company does not enter into trade financial
instruments including derivate financial instruments for hedging its foreign currency risk. The appropriateness of the risk policy is reviewed periodically with reference to the approved
foreign currency risk management policy followed by the Company.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments.
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Trade Receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. To manage trade

receivable, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial conditions, economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and
aging of such receivables.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 40, The Company does not hold collateral as security.
The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several Jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely
independent markets.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the management in accordance with the Company’s policy. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the
management on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through
counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

None of the Company’s financial assets are either impaired or past due, and there were no indications that defaults in payment obligations would occur,

Capital management

Capital includes issued equity capital and share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to
safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and Maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgment of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so as to
maintain investor and creditors confidence.

The following table provides detail of the debt and equity at the end of the reporting period :

Particulars ARt Aot
o March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Gross Debt h X 131.83 170.31
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents (Note 13) 0.13 0.74
Net Debt (A) 131.70 169.57
Total Equity (B) 748.81 691.13
Net Debt to Equity Ratio (A/B) 0.18 0.25

Foreign Currency Exposure
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations will arise.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars Asat Asut
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade payable USD/INR 42.53 20.62
Amount in FC 35,08,137 2,68,195
CNY/INR 6.45 0.15
Amount in FC' 5,29,174 12,540.00
Trade receivable USD/INR : T ——

Amourit in FC 5 ‘]

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis:

The following details are demonstrate the Company's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the INR aganst the relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items as tabulated above and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit or equity and vice-versa.

As at As at

Impact on profit or loss
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

INR strengthens by 5% USD Impact (2.13) (1.03)
CNY Impact 0.32 0.01
INR weakening by 5% USD Impact 213 1.03
CNY Impact (0.32) (0.01)

Tax Reconciliation

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Net Profit as per Statement of profit and loss (before tax) 81.92 98.17
Current Tax rate @ Applicable Tax Rates 20.62 24.71
Adjustment:
Allowability of Depreciation & Employee Benefits (3.80) (1.96)
Amount of eligible / ineligible expenditure 1.14 0.30
Taxation of Capital Gains 0.19 2,02
Other adjustments 0.87 (0.70)
Tax Provision as per Books 19.02 24.36

Financial Ratios

Ratios/Measure Methodology March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 Variation
a) Current ratio Current assets over current liabilities 9 1.9 -4.69%
b) Debt equity ratio Net Debt over total shareholders' equity 0.18 0.25 -28.31%
¢) Debt service coverage ratio Eamings available for debt services over debi 58.6% 49.1% 19.47%
d) Return on equity % PAT over total average equity 8.1% 11.2% -28.04%
¢) [nventory turnover ratio Cost of Goods Sold over average inventory 283.1% 297.8% 491%
f) Trade receivables turnover ratio Revenue from operations over average 42 53 -19.82%

trade receivables
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£) Trade payables turnover ratio Net Purchases over average trade payables 8.2 89 -8.14%
h) Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from operations over average 6.8% 8.1% -15.37%
working capital
i) Net profit % Net profit over revenue 2.3% 2.9% -20.49%
1) Return on capital employed % Eaming before interest and taxes over 11.0% 14.5% -24.09%
Capital employed
k) Return on investment Interest income, net gain on sale of 55.4% 6.5% 746.30%

mnvestments and net fair value gain over
average mvestments.

Notes:-
Eaming for Debt Service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets
etc. =

“Net Profit after tax" means reported amount of “Profit / (loss) for the period” and it does not include items of other comprehensive income.
Working Capital implies Current Assets less Current Liabilities.
Capital employed refers to sum of tangible net-worth, total debts and deferred tax liability as at close of year.

Explanation for variances exceeding 25%

b ) Debt equity ratio has decreased on account of decrease in borrowings during the current year.
d) Return on equity% ratio is decreased due to increase in personnel expenses and repair expenses.
k) Return on investment ratio is increases due to dividend received.

Other Statutory Information

The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary
shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the year.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Quarterly returns/statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are generally in agreement with the books of accounts.

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was obtained.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company)

disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off.

Figures for the previous vears have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to confinm current period classification / presentation.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
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